
 

  

From: Chancellor, Career and Adult Ed. <Chancellor2@fldoe.org> 
Sent: Monday, April 15, 2024 11:29 AM 
Subject: Allocation of Performance-based Incentive Funds for Adult General Education from Specific 
Appropriation 118 from the 2023 General Appropriations Act (GAA) 

Greetings, 

The Florida Department of Education has completed the disbursement of the allocation of 
performance-based incentive funds for adult general education programs, as specified in the 
2023 General Appropriations Act (Chapter 2023-239, Laws of Florida). The following payments 
have been disbursed: 

Payment 1 
January 4, 2024 - Florida College System institutions 
February 6, 2024 – School districts 

Payment 2 
April 15, 2024 - Florida College System institutions 
April 10, 2024 – School districts 

The attached document provides a summary of the performance-based funds that were 
disbursed during the 2023-24 fiscal year. 

If you have questions about the disbursement of these funds, please contact your district 
finance office or college business officer. 

Best Regards, 

Kevin O'Farrell, Ph.D. 
Chancellor 
Career, Technical & Adult Education 
Florida Department of Education 
325 West Gaines Street │ Tallahassee, FL 32399 
Office: (850) 245-0446 
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Background 
The 2023 General Appropriations Act provided $5,000,000 in funding to school districts and Florida College 
System (FCS) institutions with adult general education (AGE) programs based upon student performance data.  
The Department of Education is required to establish program metrics and award amounts, administer the 
program and allocate funds. To implement this new appropriation, new metrics were developed using the 
performance criteria specified in the statute. 


Measure Details 
Two measures are required in the statute.  The following table summarizes how the measures for the 
disbursement of funds were calculated. 


Measure # Proviso Language Methodology 
1 Number of adults participating in 


adult basic education or English 
language acquisition who then 
earn a non-degree credential. 


The number of students enrolled in 2021-22 in school 
district and FCS institution adult general education 
programs who achieved at least one of the following 
outcomes in 2021-22 or 2022-23:  1) Earned a high school 
equivalency diploma, earned a standard high school 
diploma, earned an industry certification, completed a 
terminal OCP  in a clock hour program (career cert or 
ATD) or completed a full postsecondary clock hour 
program (career certificate, applied technology diploma 
or apprenticeship).   
 
NOTE:  The number of students used for this measure is 
the unduplicated count of those who earned at least one 
of the qualifying credentials. 
 


2 Number of adults earning a high 
school equivalency diploma, 
participating in adult high school 
or an adult education program 
who then complete a Florida 
College System program within 
150 percent of calendar time. 


Of the number of students who completed an FCS 
program within 150% of calendar time in the 2022-23 
reporting year, the number who were found enrolled in 
an adult general education program at any time between 
2012-13 and 2022-23. 
 
NOTE: The number of students used for this measure is 
the unduplicated count of those who completed at least 
one FCS program within 150% of the expected time to 
completion. 


NOTE: Funds are awarded to the district or college in which the AGE program enrollment was identified. A 
student enrolled in more than one district or college during the year would be counted in each institution of 
enrollment. 
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Allocation of Funds 
The allocation of funds to each district or college is based upon the following: 


1. Any districts and FCS institutions who are operating adult general education programs for the 2023-24 
fiscal year are included in the allocation formula.  NOTE: There are new institutions to adult general 
education who may not yet qualify for funds using these measures. 


2. 75% of funds ($3,750,000) are allocated based upon each district or college’s proportionate share of 
the number of students who earned a non-degree credential. 


3. 55% of funds ($1,250,000) are allocated based upon each district or college’s proportionate share of 
the number of adult education students completing an FCS program within 150% of the time to 
expected time to completion. 
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Attachment B:  Allocation of Funds for Adult General Education Performance-Based Incentive Funds


Total Funds 5,000,000$                     


Measure 1:  Non -Degree Credentials 3,750,000$                      75%


Measure 2: 150% of Time to Completion 1,250,000$                      25%
5,000,000$                      100%


Non-Degree Credential Attainment 150% of Time to Completion Funds by District/College
Measure 1 Measure 2 Total and by Disbursement Period


Institution
Share of Students with 
Non-Degree Credential 


Earned


Credential Earned 
Funds


Share of On-Time FCS 
Completers


On-time FCS 
Completion Funds


Total
 January 2024 
Disbursement 


 April  2024 
Disbursement 


Alachua 0.0% -$                             0.5% 5,721$                         5,721$                       4,290$                       1,431$                       
Baker 0.5% 17,951$                  0.0% -$                                  17,951$                     13,463$                     4,488$                       
Bay 0.2% 7,365$                    0.2% 2,860$                         10,225$                     7,668$                       2,557$                       
Bradford 0.2% 7,365$                    0.1% 1,430$                         8,795$                       6,596$                       2,199$                       
Brevard 2.5% 94,360$                  1.9% 24,314$                       118,674$                  89,005$                     29,669$                     
Broward 10.0% 373,757$               11.8% 147,311$                    521,068$                  390,801$                  130,267$                  
Charlotte 0.3% 9,666$                    0.0% -$                                  9,666$                       7,249$                       2,417$                       
Citrus 0.7% 25,316$                  0.2% 2,860$                         28,176$                     21,132$                     7,044$                       
Clay 2.9% 107,248$               0.8% 10,011$                       117,259$                  87,944$                     29,315$                     
Collier 1.9% 71,806$                  0.6% 7,151$                         78,957$                     59,217$                     19,740$                     
Columbia 0.7% 28,078$                  0.7% 8,581$                         36,659$                     27,494$                     9,165$                       
Miami-Dade 14.0% 525,193$               17.5% 218,822$                    744,014$                  558,010$                  186,004$                  
DeSoto 0.3% 11,047$                  0.0% -$                                  11,047$                     8,285$                       2,762$                       
Escambia 1.7% 62,600$                  0.8% 10,011$                       72,611$                     54,458$                     18,153$                     
Flagler 0.5% 17,491$                  0.3% 4,291$                         21,782$                     16,336$                     5,446$                       
Franklin 0.0% 921$                        0.0% -$                                  921$                           690$                           231$                           
Gadsden 0.0% 1,381$                    0.0% -$                                  1,381$                       1,035$                       346$                           
Glades 0.0% -$                         0.0% -$                                  -$                                -$                                -$                                
Gulf 0.0% 921$                        0.0% -$                                  921$                           690$                           231$                           
Hamilton 0.0% -$                         0.0% -$                                  -$                                -$                                -$                                
Hardee 0.5% 17,031$                  0.1% 1,430$                         18,461$                     13,845$                     4,616$                       
Hendry 0.2% 6,444$                    0.3% 4,291$                         10,735$                     8,051$                       2,684$                       
Hernando 0.4% 14,729$                  0.2% 2,860$                         17,589$                     13,191$                     4,398$                       
Hillsborough 7.6% 283,540$               6.4% 80,092$                       363,632$                  272,724$                  90,908$                     
Indian River 0.6% 23,015$                  0.2% 2,860$                         25,875$                     19,406$                     6,469$                       
Jackson 0.6% 23,935$                  0.5% 5,721$                         29,656$                     22,242$                     7,414$                       
Jefferson 0.0% -$                         0.0% -$                                  -$                                -$                                -$                                
Lafayette 0.0% 1,841$                    0.0% -$                                  1,841$                       1,380$                       461$                           
Lake 1.7% 63,060$                  0.3% 4,291$                         67,351$                     50,513$                     16,838$                     
Lee 2.5% 95,280$                  1.8% 22,883$                       118,163$                  88,622$                     29,541$                     
Leon 2.2% 81,472$                  1.5% 18,593$                       100,065$                  75,048$                     25,017$                     
Liberty 0.4% 15,190$                  0.1% 1,430$                         16,620$                     12,465$                     4,155$                       
Madison 0.1% 5,524$                    0.0% -$                                  5,524$                       4,143$                       1,381$                       
Manatee 0.5% 18,872$                  0.3% 4,291$                         23,163$                     17,372$                     5,791$                       
Marion 1.4% 53,394$                  0.9% 11,442$                       64,836$                     48,627$                     16,209$                     
Martin 0.7% 25,776$                  0.9% 11,442$                       37,218$                     27,913$                     9,305$                       
Monroe 0.1% 5,524$                    0.2% 2,860$                         8,384$                       6,288$                       2,096$                       
Nassau 0.6% 21,173$                  0.5% 5,721$                         26,894$                     20,170$                     6,724$                       
Okaloosa 0.0% -$                         0.0% -$                                  -$                                -$                                -$                                
Orange 3.8% 142,691$               3.5% 44,336$                       187,027$                  140,270$                  46,757$                     
Osceola 3.1% 114,613$               2.2% 27,174$                       141,787$                  106,340$                  35,447$                     
Palm Beach 3.2% 121,057$               6.5% 81,522$                       202,579$                  151,934$                  50,645$                     
Pasco 2.9% 108,169$               1.3% 15,732$                       123,901$                  92,925$                     30,976$                     
Pinellas 7.0% 261,446$               5.0% 62,929$                       324,375$                  243,281$                  81,094$                     
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


Polk 2.4% 90,217$                  1.4% 17,162$                       107,379$                  80,534$                     26,845$                     
Saint Johns 1.7% 64,441$                  0.5% 5,721$                         70,162$                     52,621$                     17,541$                     
Santa Rosa 0.5% 18,872$                  0.7% 8,581$                         27,453$                     20,589$                     6,864$                       
Sarasota 1.5% 55,235$                  0.6% 7,151$                         62,386$                     46,789$                     15,597$                     
Sumter 0.5% 17,491$                  0.0% -$                                  17,491$                     13,118$                     4,373$                       
Suwannee 0.7% 24,856$                  0.2% 2,860$                         27,716$                     20,787$                     6,929$                       
Taylor 0.5% 17,491$                  0.1% 1,430$                         18,921$                     14,190$                     4,731$                       
Union 0.4% 15,650$                  0.3% 4,291$                         19,941$                     14,955$                     4,986$                       
Wakulla 0.4% 13,348$                  0.0% -$                                  13,348$                     10,011$                     3,337$                       
Walton 0.2% 6,444$                    0.2% 2,860$                         9,304$                       6,978$                       2,326$                       
Washington 0.3% 12,888$                  0.1% 1,430$                         14,318$                     10,738$                     3,580$                       


DISTRICT SUB-TOTAL 3,203,175$            906,749$                    4,109,923$               


Broward College 0.0% -$                         0.0% -$                                  -$                                -$                                -$                                
College of Central Florida 0.4% 13,809$                  0.2% 2,860$                         16,669$                     12,501$                     4,168$                       
Daytona State College 2.1% 78,250$                  4.7% 58,638$                       136,888$                  102,666$                  34,222$                     
Florida State College at Jacksonville 1.3% 49,712$                  1.8% 22,883$                       72,595$                     54,446$                     18,149$                     
Indian River State College 1.4% 53,854$                  0.9% 11,442$                       65,296$                     48,972$                     16,324$                     
Florida Gateway College 0.0% 1,381$                    0.0% -$                                  1,381$                       1,035$                       346$                           
Miami Dade College 2.7% 99,423$                  11.3% 141,590$                    241,013$                  180,759$                  60,254$                     
St. Johns River State College 0.6% 23,475$                  0.5% 5,721$                         29,196$                     21,897$                     7,299$                       
Santa Fe College 0.9% 32,681$                  0.7% 8,581$                         41,262$                     30,946$                     10,316$                     
Seminole State College of Florida 2.7% 101,725$               5.4% 67,220$                       168,945$                  126,708$                  42,237$                     
South Florida State College 2.0% 74,107$                  1.7% 21,453$                       95,560$                     71,670$                     23,890$                     
Tallahassee Community College 0.5% 18,412$                  0.2% 2,860$                         21,272$                     15,954$                     5,318$                       


FCS SUB-TOTAL 546,829$               343,248$                    890,077$                  


TOTAL STATEWIDE 100.0% 3,750,004$            100.0% 1,249,997$                 5,000,000$               3,749,977$               1,250,023$               


NOTE:  Due to rounding, sum of credential earned funds and On-time FACTE completion funds will not total to the appropriation amount.  Adjustment was made after these two calculated were summed.
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